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Mr. BUCKMAN. For the ongoing child welfare program?
Senator MELCHER. Yes.
Mr. BUCKMAN. $40,630.
We have two staff people and approximately one-eighth of the

budget goes to juvenile prevention activities. About $1,500 goes to the
tribal courts.

Senator MELCHER. Obviously, with only $16,000 through the
grant-

Mr. BUCKMAN. We have only $16,000 to carryon the program.
Senator MELCHER. And it is a $40,000 program?
Mr. BUCKMAN. Yes, sir. I do not see how we are even going to begin

to implement the act without adequate funding.
Senator MELCHER. I do not either. It is very pertinent that we are

able to provide adequate funding so we can have the act implemented.
Thank you very much, Rudy.
Mr. BUCKMAN. Thank you.
[The prepared statement follows. Testimony resumes on p. 117.]

PREPARED STATEMENT OF RUDY BUCKMAN, FORT BELKNAP INDIAN COMMUNITY
COUNCIL

The Fort Belknap Indian Community is pleased to have this opportunity to
testify on the oversight hearings on problems encountered in implementing the
Indian Child Welfare Act of 1978.

The basic purpose of the Act is to protect Indian children from arbitrary removal
from their homes and families. Indian children are the most important asset to the
future of Indian stability. The Indian Child Welfare Act. recognizes tribal sov­
ereignty by recognizing Tribal Courts as forums for the determination of Indian
child custody proceedings.

Furthermore,the Act will further strengthen the integrity of the Indian ex­
~ended. family custom by eliminating certain child welfare practices which cause
Imme~hate and unwarra~ted Indian parent-child separations, and ameliorating of
any discriminatory practices which have prevented Indian parents from qualifying
as adoptive family or foster parents. The Act requires federal and state govern­
ments to respect the rights and traditional strengths of Indian children, families
and tribes.

It appears to be the feeling of many state and local governments that the Child
Welfare Act is applicable only to tribal governments and not to themselves. It
n:-ust be emphasized that the Indian Child Welfare Act does not place any restrie­
tdons upon. a Tribal Government to enact legislation in Indian child welfare
matters, but places those restrictions and obligations contained in the Act upon the
states.

Although the Act is important,. it does have several problems which must be
:;tddressed in order to adequatel:\, implement the Congressional policy contained
in 25 U.S.C. § 1912. The following are some of the concerns which must be ad­
dressed in order to protect our Indian children:

1. FUNDING APPROPRIATIONS AND ALLOCATIONS

Congress must appropriate more money than it has to implement the Act.
Nationwide during fiscal year 1980 funding requests approved amounted to
$11,631,121. Urban organizations received forty three (43) grants or twenty
SIX percent (26%) of the total and rural or reservations received one-hundred
and twenty-two (122) grants or seventy-four percent (74%) of the total. Eighty
five (85) grant applications were not funded. Those tribes funded were not ap­
p~l?~riated adequate funds to prepare their judicial and administrative capa­
bilities to handle the increased case load which the Indian Child Welfare Act
has stimulated.

Presently, there is no department or agency at Fort Belknap which is equipped
to handle the cases referred of Tribal Court by states and other administrative
agencies. Certainly with the $16,903 dollars allocated in FY 1980 not much prog­
ress can be made. With three times as many cases and no additional staff or
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financial resources it is difficult to devote adequate time to adjudicate. place
and follow up on individual clients.

The Act has also increased the case load of our Tribal Court at a time when
our court system is facing extreme financial constraints. The case load at Fort
Belknap Tribal Court, in child custody matters has increased by 300% since the
passage of the Indian Child Welfare Act. These cases are referred to our. court
not only from the State of Montana but have come from the states of Washington,
Utah, Idaho, Iowa, Illinois, Minnesota and Virginia. There appears to be no
end in sight and that additional funding for the court system is necessary in order
to fully resolve child custody cases. The Tribal Government of the Fort Belknap
Indian Community realize the Importance and significance of the Act and have
taken appropriate steps such as redrafting their Children's Code, designated the
On Going Child Welfare office to handle referrals from the state and have at­
tempted to seek out funding to further strengthen our child welfare program.

2. STATE INVOLVEMENT

The Fort Belknap Indian Community has had numerous meeting's with the
Social and Rehabilitative Services of the State of Montana to discuss the state's
position concerning the implementation of the Indian Child Welfare Act. It
appears that we have had little success because the state wants little to do with
Indian children after the passage of the Act. The state appears reluctant to pay
for foster care or provide services after a child has been referred to Indian Court.
As we indicated earlier the state is eager to transfer cases to our tribe's jurisdiction
but little or nothing is done after that. The basic problem seems to be the lack
of services. These include the certification of foster homes, foster parents and
payment for temporary shelter. For example, Fort Belknap has received funding
and is completing a Group Home facility which will be able to shelter twenty-two
(22) youths in need of care and houseparents. If the home is not certified by the
state no payment can be made for clients placed there by the Fort Belknap
Court. Even homes that are certified as foster home shelter units are having
problems receiving foster care payment from the state.

3. B.I.A. INVOLVEMENT

The Bureau of Indian Affairs does not have the organization or funding to assist
the Tribes or perform the necessary functions as required under the Indian Child
Welfare Act. As we indicated earlier the Tribal Government of the Fort Belknap
Indian Community submitted a proposal for Indian Child Welfare Act funds and
were told that the funds would be competitive based upon the proposals submitted
by the Tribes. However, the funds were not distributed upon a competitive basis
but were allocated to be pro-rated out to the Tribes. We received $16,903. The
proposal submitted to the Bureau by the Fort Belknap Indian Community
received the highest grading in the Billings Area but got less than Ya of their re­
quest which will jeopardize the progress made in the area of child welfare. Further­
more, these funds are to be utilized before the end of fiscal 1980 and then grant
application for fiscal 1981 are to be submitted by December 31 of 1980 but the
funds for fiscal 1980 will not be activated until April 1, 1981 which leaves approxi­
mately a six-month gap in the funding period which will have a detrimental effect
upon the continuity and progress which the Tribes have obtained up to that point.

4. Other Tribes Involvement
The Tribal judicial system and the child welfare program of the Fort Belknap

Indian Community have had cases which have involved other tribes within and
without the state of Montana. There seems to be a further need for clarification
and understanding of the Act in order to resolve jurisdictional disputes which may
arise. We have not encountered any disputes which we have not been able to
resolve on an amicable basis but there is room for serious problems that must be
addressed before they reach proportions that require litigation.

These are only a few of the major areas which concern the Tribal Government of
the Fort Belknap Indian Community. We are pleased with the passage of the
Indian Child Welfare Act and feel that it is a step in the right direction in re-affirm­
ing and re-emphasizing tribal sovereignty and self-government of Indian Tribes.
We are attaching some documents and correspondence which pertain to the Act
and our concerns with funding allocations. Thank you.

69-083 0 - 80 - 7
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(406) 353-2205
P.O. Box 249

Fort Belknap Agency
Harlem,Montana 59526

FOl1aalklUlplndll'nCQlllml.tnlty
(Tribal acvt.)

Fort Belknlptndl.nCornmunlty
(EleOledIOadmlnl.lerlhoellairf;Orll'l8CorMIunlly
lind 10 re~reallnllhe Anlnlbolnll end the aro•
Wnlre Tflbe. I)i the Fort Bd,.nap Ind~n

ReeeMlUllnj

June 10, 1980

John Melcher. Senator
United States Senate
6313 Dirksen Senate Office Building
Washington, D.C. 20510

Senator Melcher:

Enclosed please find a copy of a letter I recently sent to the
American Indi~n Lawrer Training Program, Inc. expressing my
concern and dlsappolntment 1n the manner In WhlCh the Bureau of
Indian Affairs allocated the funds to implement the Indian Child
Welfare Act.

As Chairman of the Senate Select Committee on Indian Affairs you
have ~robab1y already heard some concern expressed regarding the
admlnlstratlon of funds allocated to lmp1ement the Act. We realize
that there can be no action which will satisfy a11.tribes, but
to purposely mislead tribes by saying monies would be competitive
and then g1ven pro rata does not make sense. I believe I once
wrote you that this type of funding formula merely ma1ntains the
status quo of tribes in relation to each other. It soon leads
to low morale and motivation among tribal leaders in various stages
of development. For example, some do not need-as much economic
development aid or technical assistance as others. Another tribe
might need more social development program monies. In otherwards
tribal priorities must be v1ewed as guidelines for the Bureau of
Indian Affairs to follow.

SA;;Yt7ic/~«.:
c~ar1es "Jack" Plumage, President
Fort Belknap Community Council

American Indian Lawyer Training Program, Inc.
319 MacArthur Blvd.
Oakland. California 94610

Dear Sirs:

We would like to express some of our concerns regarding the Indian Child
Welfare Act of 1978 (PoL. 95-608) 'and the Bureau of Indian Affairs inept
and inconsistent attempts to implement the law.

In a news release of the Department of Interior on July ,27, 1979 the basic
purpose of the Act was to restrict the p'Lacemerrt- o~ Indian cnildren by non­
Indian social agencies in ncn-fnar.en homes and envi.r-cnnent s ,

"The policy of -the Act- and of these regulations is to
protect 'Indian cnildren from arbitrary removal f::om
their families and tribal affiliations by establlsn­
.ing procedures to insure ·that measures to prevent the
breakup of Indian families are followe.d in cni~d
custody, proceedings 0 This will insure pr-ot.ectn.on
of the best interests of Indian children and' Indian
families by providing assistance and funding to
Indian tribes and Indian oz-garri.aatrlone in the op­
eration, of cnild end' family: service programs Which
reflect' the, unique values of Indian culture and
promote the stability and security of Indian families.
In 'administering the grant authority for Indian Child
and Family Programs: it shall be Bureau policy -co
emphasize the design and funding otprograms to
promote the stability of Indian families. 'I

Please note that responsibility for. "des Lgn and funding" was p Laced wit~in the
Bureau of Indian Affair~o ,InFY 1980 the Bureau of Indian A.ffal.rs r-ece Lved
250 grant applications r-equee'td.ngta total of $20,~80.530 but co~d only appr~:~
$11 631.121. We have no oeai c argument ':lith the anedequet-e rundfng levels,
we do have grave concerns oyer the administration of the funds on the part of
the Bureau of Indian Affairs.
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pg.2jletter to American Indian Lawyer Training Program, Inc.

In order to view our complaint in the proper perspective a review of what
actually nappened to Fort Belknap is in order. (See attacnment I) I attended
hearings on the implication' s and ramifications of implementing the Act in
Denver, Colorado in April. In January 1980 some of the Tribal staff from
Fort Belknap attended an "urgent" meeting in which the Social Service
Director of the Bureau of Indian Affairs in the Billings Area Office re­
quested proposals from eacn tribe in the Area. The staff were informed
that all grants to implement the Act would be competitive, and no tribe
with a' "poor" proposal would be likely to receive grant monies to implement
the Act. As you see (attachment II) Fort Belknap:ranked the highest in the
Area with a score of ninety-four (94) to staff and care for those children
referred to Fort Belknap under the Act. Fort Belknap was constructing a
Group Home with a capacity of eleven girls (11) and eleven (11) boys and
nouse parents with funds from LEAA. As stated earlier we had already
enacted and adopted a Children's Code with specific references to the Indian
Child Welfare Act. Mucn to our surprise every tribe in the Area was funded
at approximately $16,000.-$17,000.00. As indicated in Attachment II Fort
Belknap requested $55,740.00 and received $16,903.00 or just under one-third
(1/3) of our request. At the same time the Shosnone Tribe and Arapahoe
Tribe wno occupy one reservation but have two councils eacn received $16,384.
eacn or about one-half (1/2) of their requests with rating·',s lower than Fort
Belknap's. We do not consider this method ethical or equitable on the part
of the Bureau of Indian Affairs. In regard to this matter the Bureau of
Indian Affairs has reached the heights of mediocrity. To s~ proposals will
be ranKed according to priority·andcompetitiveness and to allocate funds
pro-rata does not make sense. We object to this type of treatment by the
Bureau of Indian Affairs. Moreover, priorities Can only be set by tribes
and not the Bureau of Indian Affairs.

Only last week former Secretary of State Cyrus Vance said in the Harvard
commencement address that the United States snould give funds to countries
(allies) in the Western Hemisphere so that they may become friends and
develop their own military power with our dollars. He was referring to
billions and billions of dollars. Yet Indian Tribes, Indian Nations, and
Indian people to whom the United States Government has a special relationsnip
cannot receive adequate funding for a law in wnicn Congress passed. The
funds allocated.were grossly inadequate and even these inadequate funds were
poorly distributed by the Bureau of Indi~~ Affairs.

Sincerely" '~j/~
C~ "Jack" Plumage
President
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Attachment I

STATEMENT OF THE FORT BELKNAP INDIAN COMMUNITY

(Gros Ventre and Assiniboine Tribes)

ON THE INDIAN CHILD WELFARE ACT OF 1978

lot' name is Charles "Jack" Plumage, and I am nere in behalf of the

Tribal Government of the Fort Belknap Indian Community (Gros Ventre and

Assinibofne Tribes) of the Fort Belknap Indian Reservation, Montana.

The Tribal Government is pleased to have this opportunity to testify on

the implementation and ramifications of the Indian Child Welfare Act.

It goes without saying that Our Indian children are the most critical

resource of Indian tribes. At a time when Indian tribes are being

challenged from all fronts, the Indian Child Welfare Act of 1978 reaffirms

tribal sovereignty in the area of cnild welfare matters.

Futhermore, the Act Will-further strengthen the integrity of the Indian

extended family custom by eliminating cer-t.afn child welfare practices

~ whiCh cause immediate and unwarranted Indian,parent-child separations,

and ameliorating any discriminatory practices which nave prevented

Indian parents from 'qUalifying"~~"~~oPtive family or foster parents.

The Act requires Federal and State Governments to respect the rights and

traditional strengths of Indian cnildren, families and tribes.

It appears to be the feelings of many state and local governments

that the Child Welfare Act is equally applicable to tribal governments.

It must be emphasized that the Indian Child Welfare Act does not place

-any restrictions upon a Tribal Government in enacting legislation in

Indian Child Welfare matters, but places those restrictions contained in

the Act upon the states.
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Although the Act is important, it does have several ramifications

which must be addressed in order to adequately implement the Congressional

policy contained in 25 U.S.C. § 1912. The following are some of the concerns

which must be addressed in order to protect our Indian children:

1. Funding: The Congress must appropriate adequate funds Which must be

made available to Indian tribes for the purpose of preparing their judicial

system and increasing their administrative capability in order to handle the

increased case load wnich the Indian Child Welfare Act has stimulated. At

the present time, Indian tribes do not have an Indian child welfare agency

or department within which to adequately handle the administrative case load

and referrals referred to Tribes by the state. At Fort Belknap we are rece1V1ng

approximately 50% referrals from states which must be handled in a confidential

and professional fashion. But without adequate financial resourCeS and staffing,

it is extremely difficult to handle these matters.

The Act has also increased the case load of our Tribal Court at a time

}when our court system is facing extreme financial restraints. The case. load

in child custody matters bas increased by 75% percent since the passage of the

Indian Child Welfare Act. These cases are referred to our court not only from

the State of Montana but have come from the states of Washington, utah, Iowa,

Illinois, and Minnesota. There appears to.be no end in sight and that additional

funding for the court system is necessary in order to fUlly resolve child

custody cases and protect the rights of all parties. The Tribal Government

of the Fort Belknap Indian Community realizes the importance and significance

of the Act and nave taxenappropriate steps such as redrafting their Children's

Code, designated an office to nandle referrals from the state, and have attempted

to seek our funding to further strengthen our child welfare program.

- 2 -
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Which leaves approximately a six-month gap in the funding period that will nave

an enormous effect upon the continuity and progress which the Tribes nave

obtained up to this point.

4. Other Tribes Involvement; The tribal JUdicial system and the child welfare

program of the Fort Belknap Indian Community naVe had cases whiCh haVe involved

other ~ribes within and without the state of Montana. There seems to be a

further need for clarification and understanding of the Act in order to resolve

jurisdictional disputes Which m~ arise. We have not encountered any di.putes

Which we have not been able to resolve on an amicable basis but there is room

for serious problems that must be addressed before they reach proportions. that

require litigation.

These are only a'few of the maJor areas which concern the Tribal Governwent

of the Fort Belknap Indian Community and We Would like to leave the record

open in order to provide you with further data in support of this statement.

Again, we would like to emphasize that We ~re Plea~ed with the passage of the

Indian Child Welfare Act and feel that it is a step 1n the right direct~on in
~

re-affirming and re-emphasizing tribal sovereignty and self-goYernmentof

Indian Tribes.
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Fort Bel~naP Indian community received the highest grading in the Billings

Jeopardize the progress made in the area of child welfare. The funds were to

that the fundS were not distributed upon a competitive basis but are going to

bepro~rated out to the Tribes. The proposal SUbmitted to the Bureau by the

- 3 -

Area but yet will get less that 1/3 of their req~est which will extremely

Furthermore, these funds are to be utilized before the end of fiscal 1980

upon them by the Navajo Nation.

as required under the Indian Child Welfare Act. The Tribal Government of

organlzation or funding to asslst the Tribes or perform the necessary functions

be activated on April 1,1980 but still have not been due to a hold placed

of 1980 but the funds for fiscal 1981 will not be actlvated until April 1, 1981

and then grant applicat10n for fiscal 1981 are to be s~bmitted by December 31

Act funds and were told that the funds would be competitive based upon the

the Fort Belknap Indian Community submitted a proposal for Indian Child Welfare

3. BIA Involvement: The Bureau of Indian Affairs per se does not have the

wanting to spend any money upon Indian reservations.

are cutting back budgets drastically the whole matter boils down to not

borders of the Reservatlon. In a time when the State and Federal government

Tribes' jur1sdiction but relinquish and deny any responsibility beyond the

The stl3.te appears to have no difficulty in transferring those cases to the

Child Welfare Act. It appears to us that the state of Montana wants little

to do with Indian children after passage of the Indian Child Welfare Act.

meetings with the Social and Rehabilitative Services of the State of Montana

2. State Involvement: The Fort Belknap Indian Community has had numerOus

to discuss the state's position concerning the implementation of the Iridian

~ proposals submitted by the Tribes. However, it has just come to our attention
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16,903·0000+
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Buy U.S. Savinns Bonds Regularly on

With the enclosed information you may proceed wIth the notification of
applicants of funding, realigning or structuring of grunt s relative t:g
funding level as necessary, and processing of -ot her grant mat e r LaL ae
needed to initiate the grants. Financial management will be informing
you of the formal financial allotments.

The formula allocation method W8o$ utilized at the 80 percentile
level for each area. This was done for the purpose of increasing the
size of Ebe remainder in the funding formula in order to more effectively
fund a large portion of grant applications (refer to 23.27 (c)(l).
The funds remaining after the formula allocation process were distributed
across the areas to the remaining prioritized grant applicants until
there were no remaining funds. If this method had not been utilized
the majo r Lt y of proposals would have received' a grant of only $15.000,

As backg.round , the Bureau received 250 grant applications for funding
under Title II of the Indian Child Welfare Act requesting a total of
$20,180::.530. Funding requests for all approved gr ante totaled. $11)631,121.
At t ached you will also find a brief summary sheet concerning, the Title II
grant program developed for budget purposes. This information should
further explain t he Bureau's inability to fund all approved grant
applications, and to the amount of .t he grant request.

At t eched you will find the listing of approved grants. which you
submitted for funding und'e r Title II of the Indian Child Welfare
Act. This Lnc Iud e s the client population and the percentage of q
the total client popul.ar Lon for each grant application, the formula
allocation per grant. ana the actual available funding for each grant.

All Area. Directors
Attention: Social Services

Allocation of Indian ChUd We

Thls nrec ecu r e left only three possible areas where all approved grants
could not be funded. It, also resulted 1n appr oxtma t eLy 35% of the
approved grant applicants r ece Lvdng funding at the level they requested.
'Iwent y-taLx percent of the total approved applications requested $16.000

'or less. Only 7 approved applications did not receive funding due to
the availability of funds (refer to 25 CFR 23.27 (c l ),

~
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be reviewed a minimum of twice' a year. The
c craoLat ed by area or agency staff no ~ater _than.
A random quality control review will be unnercakeu
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Other grant program Lnf o rme t Ion that should be kept in mind 1s:

1) Appeals Cil.~ o~lY be fl~ed ~1th the Central Office -up to
thirty days after thl':_ deci~ion by _the Area Of f Lc e , Accord1ng to t'¢81,r

lations, area should have informed:

a) All urban groups by February 18, 1980 of. their decision.

b) All tribes should have been informed no '"later than March 18) 1980.

t Where it appears a tribe
2) Tribes can apply for only one gran. d In a coosortium Area

or organization has applied as a single g~ante:r~:pping grant propo;als to any
Offices may redistribute the funding a n t ne 0:
applications that have r eraaLneu unfunded in t ne a r area.

rant period for this lnltlal funding period
3) The recommended g 1981.• Dr less If the grant pr-cpos a L

1s from April L, 1980 t nr-ougn Har cn 31!
is for 1esii pnen 12 mont na ,

4) Grant s should
first review 6 noul.d be

the end of September.
during Oc~ober 1980.

5) The next grant application period is tentatively planned for

December 1980 and January 1981.

If a~y Questions arise concerning this information, please contact "

Louise Zokan, Central Office Soc1al ser;:: I ~.,/1 1/.. iZ
! !.u7'vn''! f 1'"'N-.",,\ /2(

t (J
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Indian Child lJelfare Act, Title 11 Grant Program
r.. .

1. first grant a ppLfcet f on period ended January lB. 1980

ll. Total number of grant app l f ce t I cns received· 2pO
Number of grant applications approved· 165 or ~6~

Number of grant applications d~~approved • 85 or 3~t

Ill. Total funding requested (including both approved and disapproVed
grant applications) • $20.180.503

funding requested in all approved grant applications - $11,63l,l21
funding requested in disapprOVed applications • $8.5~9,38~

IV. Nunb~r of consortiums which were approved for funding. 17. composed
of 150 tribes, or organizations. (Each consortium is considered one
grant apPlication in the total grant application figure).

v. Ap~roxinate % breakdown on approved applications:
26~ Urban organizations (43)
7~% ~ural or reservation (122)

VI. FundLng Alternatives: It all approved grantees (single applications
and consortiums) would receive the base, figure of $15.000 as publh'\leq
in the Federal Registet. the costs would equal $~.680.0DO. This woulq
leave only $770,000 for distribution relative to 7. of client population.

Therefore aLt ernative methods of allocat ing funds using the funding
for~ula are being considered. The prinary alternative is ranking the
listing ~ approved grants in order of priority and then breaking down
the client populations in each area by percentile, and funding programs

,using th:' fornula down to a certain per~entile. This would more adeq~ately
meet the requirements in 25 CFR 23.27 that each approved applicant .
"receive a proportionately equitable share sufficient to fund an effeCtive
prograa." and yet Oeet the requirement that grant approvals "shall be •
subject to the availability of funds." ..

Vll. Major Concerns in IT 81:

1. The On-Going Chila lJeltare Program is being incorporated il'!fQ t he
Title II program in FY 81. It will be highly improbable that these
projects will be able to continue to operate with Bureau funding whe~

their fiscal year ends September 19BO, and the next grant applicatton
period wil! most likely not occur until December 1980 and January +?&*
and funds will not be allocated before April 1, 1981. A six month *ap:
will occur between possible fund~nB periods, . -

2. The extreme limitation in funding requires that the ~rant progralD
tlke on roore structure, and become more highly competitive in order tQ
maximhe utilhation of funds in the most "'Calistic" progracp with tribes
and Indian organizations.
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IN Rl-:PLY REFEl{ TO:

Social Services

United States Department of the Interior
BUREAU OF INDIAN AFFAIRS

BILLINGS AREA OFFiCE

316 NORTH 26TH ST.

BILLINGS. MONTANA 59101

JUN 03 1980

M'/i
Social Services

HelUOrandum

To: Superintendent, Ft. Belknap Agency

1980

Mr. Charles D. Plumage
President, Ft. Belknap Community Council
Ft. Belknap Agency
Harlem, Montana 59526

Dear Mr. Plumage:

We are transmitting another copy of information which you requested by
telephone on June 3.

This same information was provided to you by the Area Director prior
to your giving testimony in Denver. If you need additional informa­
tion. please let me know.

Sincerely yours.

cfJJLY7·~
J hn.N. Burkhart
~ea Social Worker

II

Frome ~\O Social Services

Subject I Funding for Ft. Belknap Child UeHara Act

We are fublllitting this information a. per our telecon of thi. date,
Mr. Charles PluUlJlge. Chain>an. Ft. Belknap COlDlDUnity CounCil, IllAdo 0
direct requeat for the amount of funding for tha Ft. BelkDOp Indian
Child Waltare Act Crants. Theae amounts are Ft. Belknap $16.903 aQd
Area Wid.. $133.667. We advised hia about tha "appeals situation" ollll
that although We had a m8lllOrandum frOlll the COIIlIlliaeionor'o Oftico we­
lining ~ho tontative omounto to tho tribea in thi. aroa, va ~d alao
racoived a verbel request trom Central Ottica advioing ua pqtto 4~.­

panoo thi. information yet.

Thio was dua to ths atatement tl~t an appeal had been racoived in th,
..antima and that no allocation ot funda were to bo mado until sucb
tima ao tho appoalpariod had passodond oppeal. had baonrooolved,
Tho outco..·ot appoals would havo. dotinito .ffect upontha amGUDt,
ot allocattono ..do to tho othar triboo. W. havo requaat, but h.v~

not taqllvod, writton verification of tho abovo ..otionodtalephone
nqua.!'i. Tilerafore, tho.. 4lIOupt. are deUnitely unt.tiva .•nd~:\.1
pqt be t1pal until wo reco1ved a tOnl41. notico (If allocaUOII of.tuad••

SiDCO Hr. rlumage intende to rabe thh houo at the tlDeot tli~h.4f­
ings next week in Denver Oil the Indi.1I Child· Welfare Act•.it hour
opill1on that ho ahould· have tho illfoc.atiouabout·tbe formula end :.
distribution Illethod ulledby Centrolottice inarr1v1ngatthoomount
of the grant.

Ill/John N. Burkhart

John II. Durkhart
Area Social Worker

Enclos~ra

cc: Chief. Indian Services
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Senator MELCHER. Our next witness is Bert Hirsch, Association on
American Indian Affairs, New York. He is accompanied by Steven
Unger.

STATEMENT OF BERTRAM E. HIRSCH, COUNSEL, ASSOCIATION ON
AMERICAN nmIAN AFFAIRS, INC., NEW YORK, N.Y., ACCOM.
PANIED BY STEVEN UNGER, EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. HIRSCH. We are going to do this the other way around, if you
do not mind. Steven Unger is going to give the testimony.

Senator MELCHER. Yes; we have it. You may summarize it .if you
wish.

Mr. UNGER. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
My name is Steven Unger. I am the executive director of the

Association on American Indian Affairs. With me is Bert Hirsch
who often provides counsel to us on Indian child welfare matters.

With your permission, we would like to submit Our prepared testi­
mony for the record and just very quickly summarize It now.

Senator MELCHER. Without objection, the entire statement will be
made a part of the record at the end of your testimony.

Mr. UNGER. The two matters I would like to concentrate on are as
follows. First, we welcome the BIA's recognition this morning that
$15 million would be a more realistic figure to meet the 1981needs of
the tribe under the Indian Child Welfare Act and would urge in­
creased appropriations.

Second, in regard to appropriations, we feel that the BIA's distribu­
tion formula undermines the ability of the tribes to successfully per­
form their Child Welfare Act grants and would urge that appropria­
tions under the act be made not on the per capita basis that theBIA
has used but on a comparative assessment of need.

The other matter I would like to highlight is that we wholeheartedly
endorse the Navajo Nation's call for tribal involvement in the board­
ing school study mandated by title IV which we believe is an essential
part of the act.

I might recall that this committee in its report on the act said that
it expected the Department of the Interior to work closely with it in
the development and implementation of the boarding school study.
We feel that as long as children are forced to attend boarding schools,
the commitment of the act to protect the integrity of Indian families
will not be fulfilled.

We would also urge the committee to consider holding oversight.
hearings on the boarding school situation early in the 97th Congress
after the report is received.

Thank you.
[The prepared statement follows. Testimony resumes on p. 121.]

PREPARED STA'fEMENT OF STEVEN UNGER, EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR, ASSOCIATION .ON
AMERICAN INDIAN AFFAIRS, INC., AND BERTRAM E. HIRSCH, COUNSEL, Asso­
CIATION ON AMERICAN INDIAN AFFAIRS, INC.

Mr. Chairman and members of the Select Committee, My name is Steven
Unger. I am Executive Director of the Association on American Indian Affairs.
The Association is a national, nonprofit organization founded in 1923 to assist
American Indian and Alaska Native communities in their efforts to achieve full
civil,social, and economic equality. It is governed by a Board of Directors, the
majority of whom are Native Americans.
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With me is Bertram E. Hirsch, an attorney who provides counsel to and fre­
quently represents the Association in Indian child welfare matters.

We would first like to thank the Select Committee for calling these hearings and
for permitting the Association to testify.

The Congress and the Committee deserve congratulations on the commitment
made through the Indian Child Welfare Act to protect the most critical resource
of American Indian tribes-the children. As testimony before the Congress for
the last six years has abundantly demonstrated, the child welfare crisis caused
by the unwarranted separation of Indian children from their families has been of
massive proportions and nationwide in scope. Assaults on Indian family life by
state and federal agencies have undermined the right of Indian tribes to govern
themselves and have helped cause the conditions where large numbers of people
feel hopeless, powerless, and unworthy. Perhaps nothing has so weakened the
incentive of parents to struggle against the conditions under which they live as the
removal of their children.

Enactment of the Indian Child Welfare Act has been responsible for new hope
among Indian parents and tribes that they will be able to raise their children in an
atmosphere free from unjust governmental interference and coercion. It has
changed the basis upon which state and federal agencies make decisions affecting
the custody of Indian children to one with a more conscientious regard for the
rights of Indian tribes. parents and children. Tribes are creatively and dynamically
developing programs to halt and reverse the removal of children and to assure
that they are well cared for within the tribal community. State courts and agencies
have generally been receptive to working with the tribes to see that the purposes
of the Indian Child Welfare Act are fulfilled.

We share the Committee's concern in holding these oversight hearings to help
assure effective implementation of the Act. Our testimony today will concentrate

. on four areas:
(1) Implementation of Title I;
(2) Funding of Title II;
(3) The boarding school study mandated by Title IV;
(4) The need for technical amendments to the Act.

TITLE I IMPLEMENTATION

The Indian Child Welfare Act has been generally well received throughout the
United States by state courts and agencies and by the Indian tribes. Tribal
court orders have been granted full faith and .credit by states. State courts and
agencies and their tribal counterparts in a number of states have made informal
agreements regarding ·transfers of jurisdiction and. the delivery of social services,
and many transfers have been accomplished without difficulty.. Involuntary and
voluntary placements of Indian children have taken place in accordance with the
provisions of the Act. Many trihes are enhancing the ability of their. courts to
adjudicate child-custody proceedings; developing sophisticated children's codes;
andiestahlishing comprehensive social service delivery systems, A number of
Indian children who were adopted prior to the Act have now been able to acquire
information regarding their tribe and the background of their natural. parents.

In sum, the Act has been of substantial benefit to the best interests of Indian
children, families and tribes, and has brought about greater cooperation and
understanding between tribal and state courts and agencies.

A further indication of the success of the Act is that it has withstood consti­
tutional challenges.

In a South Dakota case, Gu:ffin v, R.L., a non-Indian foster family who, with
the consent of the parents, had ohtained custody of several Indian children (all
residents and domiciliaries of the reservation) through an order of the Lower
Brule Sioux Trihal Court, sought guardianship in a South Dakota court after
ignoring the order of the tribal court to return the children to their parents. The
South Dakota court ruled that it did not have jurisdiction and dismissed the
guardianship petition. The foster family appealed, arguing that. the Indian Child
Welfare Act was unconstitutional. South Dakota's Supreme Court unanimously
dismissed the appeal on April 9, 1980, affirming that the Indian Child Welfare
Act is within the constitutional power of. Congress to legislate concerning Indian
affairs, and that legislation defining the Jurisdiction of Indian tribes is premised
on the political status of the tribe and not on a racial classification.

In an Oklahoma District Court case'J1n the Matter of Melinda Twobabies
the court upheld the jurisdiction of the Southern Cheyenne Tribe and rejected
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the argument of the state that the Indian Child Welfare Act violated the Tenth
Amendment.

In Alaska, in November 1979, the Supreme Court dismissed the state's petition
for a ruling that Alaska Native children born after the close of enrollment in the
corporations created by the Alaska Native Claims Settlement Act in 1971 are not
covered by the Indian Child Welfare Act.

The State of Alaska, in particular, has since then taken noteworthy steps to
assure the effective implementation of the Child Welfare Act. In a resolution
adopted on April 29, 1980 the Alaska State Legislature proclaimed that;

(1) the legislature endorses and supports the concept and policy of the
Indian Child Welfare Act of 1978 (Public Law 95-608);

(2) the governor ISurgently requested to-direct the Department of Health
and Social Services to promptly take the steps necessary to implement the
Act in Alaska and to provide the financing necessary for implementation;

(3) the chief justice of the Alaska supreme court is requested to direct the
court system to promptly take steps necessary to cooperate in the Implemen­
tation of the Act in Alaska.

TITLE II FUNDING

Ultimately, responsibility for correcting the child welfare crisis rests properly
with the Indian communities themselves. Congress recognized this in providing
child and family service program grants to tribes and Indian organizations under
Title II of the Act. The objective of such programs is to prevent the breakup of
Indian families and, in particular, to insure that the permanent removal of an
Indian child from the custody of his parents should be a last resort.

In allocating Title II appropriations the BIA provided approved grantees with
a base amount of $15,000. After each grantee was allocated the base amount,re­
maining funds were to be allocated equal to the percentage of the "total national
Indian client population" to be served by the grantee. A number of tribes, for
example in the Billings area, were advised by the Bureau that $15,000 would be
the maximum grant, and as a result applied only for that amount.

Under the appropriations made by theBIA, we are informed that two of the
BIA areas of the country will each receive approximately 20 percent of the funds.
None of the other areas will receive more than 10 percent of the funds, and five
areas will each receive less than 5 percent of the funds. Among the areas receiving
limited funding are tribes in the Great Plains and Southwest, areas where Con­
gressional studies and our own experience reveal tremendous unmet child-welfare
needs.

The BIA's distribution formula undermines the successfulimplementation of
the Act and the performance of Title II grants by Indian tribes and organizations
because it is based on a per capita basis and not on an assessment oftheir relative
needs. The purpose of Title II grants-to prevent the break-up ofIndian families-­
necessitates allocations based on an assessment of the needs of the applicants.

We note that the Bureau's budget request of $5.5 million for the Indian Child
Welfare Act wa~ the same for fiscal year 1981 as for fiscal year 1980. These
amounts are inadequate to meet the urgent child and family-service needs of
Indian communities and should be increased.

We would also like to point out that, in addition to authorizing direetappropria­
tions to the Department of the Interior, the Act authorizes the Secretary of the
Interior to enter into agreements with the Secretary of Health and Human
Services to use funds appropriated to that Department for the establishment and
operation of Indian child and family services both on and off reservation. Imple­
mentation of this feature could provide additional funding to Indian tribes for
child and family service programs. Yet, tothe best of our knowledge, the Secretary
has not attempted to enter into such agreements nor has there been any effort
to request that the Congress expressly appropriate funds for the purposeof.fuls
filling such an agreement.

TITLE IV BOARDING SCHOOL STUDY

Progress already made possible by the Act in eliminating the unwarranted
placement of Indian children in adoption and foster care, throws into even sharper
relief the destruction of Indian family and community life caused by thefederal
boarding school and dormitory programs. More than 20,000 Indian children
(thousands as young as 5 to 10 years old) are placed in U.S. Bureau of .Indian
Affairs' boarding schools. Enrollment in BIA boarding schools and dormitorie
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is not based necessarily on the educational needs of the children; it is chiefly a
means of providing substitute care. The standards for taking children from their
homes for boarding school placement are as vague and as arbitrarily applied as
are standards for foster-care placements.

In Title IV of the Indian Child Welfare Act Congress declared that "the absence
of locally convenient day schools may contribute to the breakup of Indian fami­
lies." Congress directed the Secretary of the Interior to submit a report on the
feasibility of providing Indian children with schools located near their homes
within two years from the date of the Act; that is, by November of this year. In
its report on the Indian Child Welfare Act, this Committee stated:

It is the expectation of the committee that the Secretary of the Interior
or his representative will work directly with the staffs of the appropriate
Senate and House committees to determine the particulars of said plan and
its report form.

In the House, the report of the Committee on Interior and Insular Affairs,
stated:

The committee was informed of the devastating impact of the Federal
boarding school system on Indian family life and on Indian children, par­
ticularly those children in the elementary grades and considers that it is in
the best interests of Indian children that they be afforded the opportunity
to live at home while attending school. It is noted that more than 10,000
Navajo children in grades 1 to 8 are boarded.

The Title IV report is potentially one of the most significant parts of the Act.
Until Indian children are no longer forced to attend federal boarding schools, the
commitment made by Congress "to promote the stability and security of Indian
tribes and families" will not be fulfilled. We urge the Committee to consider
holding oversight hearings on the boarding school situation early in the next
Congress, after the report is received.

We would also like to point out that there are Indian children for whom there
are local day schools, but who are placed in boarding schools for so-called social
reasons. In making these placements,is the BIA following good child-welfare
practice as mandated by the Act that placement out of the family will only be a
last resort? On this aspect of the boarding school issue, there is no need to wait
for the Title IV boarding school study-and the Committee may want to investi­
gate immediately.

TECHNICAL AMENDMENTS

Since the enactment of the Child Welfare Act the Association has identified
provisions of the law which require technical amendments to eliminate conflicting
provisions, clarify ambiguities, and/or more clearly express Congressional intent.

For example, the Title I provisions regarding voluntary consents to foster care
placements or termination of parental rights do not expressly limit the application
of the provisions to state court proceedings, as we believe was clearly the intent of
Congress. Questions have been raised as to whether these provisions were intended
to apply to tribal court proceedings as well. All other Title I sections are made
applicable to state court proceedings only. We recommend a technical amendment
that clarifies the provisions.

In the section of the Act pertaining to involuntary placements, it is possible for
a child-custody proceeding to be held on the 11th day after notice of the proceeding
is received by the Secretary of the Interior. However, the.same section provides
that the Secretary shall have 15 days after receipt of notice to notify the parents,
Indian custodians, and the tribe of the proceeding. As the section is currently
drafted, a child-custody proceeding can be held in a state court prior to the
statutory date within which the Secretary must attempt to notify potential
parties. This anomaly, which obviously results from a drafting error, should be
corrected.

The need for other technical amendments exists. The Association would welcome
the opportunity to present to the Committee a list of these other amendments
early in the Ninety-Seventh Congress.

CONCLUSION

Ongoing Congressional interest and further oversight hearings can playa vital
role in assuring successful implementation of the Indian Child Welfare Act.

We hope this presentation of the Association's views will be useful to the
Committee.
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Senator MELCHER. Is Patty Marks still here?
Patty, it is my impression that the Navajo Nation is interested

more, not in boarding schools, but in a program of schools close
enough to the family unit where the children are not removed from
the family for education purposes to a boarding school but remain in
the family home and go to school each day-close enough so that
they get on a bus and somehow get there and return home every
evening. Is that correct?

Ms. MARKS. Mr. Chairman, again I am speaking from my personal
knowledge because I have not recently discussed this in detail with
the tribe. But recalling the hearings that Mr. Taylor and I had when
we were on the staff for this bill, the Nation has never really taken a
position pro or con on boarding schools for the simple reason that the
Navajo Nation is so large and situations are unique.

There will be intances, I would assume, not Just on Navajo but on
other reservations, where boarding schools are a workable and ac­
ceptable alternative. However, Navajo is concerned with the lack of
availability of day schools.

So I guess my answer to your question is twofold: There may be
situations-and I use the word, tlmay"-where a boarding school is
acceptable to the local people, but In the majority of instances I
believe the position has always been as you have said-for locally
convenient day schools.

Senator MELCHER. Is Anslem Roanhorse here also?
Would you return to the witness table?
It is my understanding that part of your request for this study, if

we get on with it, is to identify the fact that for the Navajo Nation
they do not want to set up this program in conjunction with boarding
schools just to have boarding schools for social needs. Is that correct?

Mr. ROANHORSE. To reiterate what Patty Marks said,! think
there has to be a study, and then based on the study we need to de­
termine the best possible way of setting up the day schools.

Senator MELCHER. That is the point. The Navajos are looking
more to the point of day schools rather than boarding schools. Is that
correct?

Mr. ROANHORSE. Yes, sir. I think the underlying thing is that the
Indian families should be kept together and every effort should be
made to prevent Indian family breakups.

However, there is also the point that we need to have some other
resources, and I think this is where we need. to consider the mixed
feelings as to what the benefits we can get from the Bureau are, on
boarding schools. This is why there is a need to do a study to de­
termine what alternatives we are able to take.

Senator MELCHER. It is my understanding from Chairman Mac­
Donald that it is the intent of the Navajo Nation, as much as is.pos­
sible, to have the schools located close enough to the families so that
the child remains part of the family unit every day.

Mr. ROANHORSE. Yes, sir.
Senator MELCHER. Mr. Butler, we are picking up the pieces a little

out of order here, but could you tell U;S, on behalf of the Bureau, that
the study will be coordinated with the tribe? We do not want the
study just to come in as a sterile object which then has to be reviewed
by the tribe. We prefer that the study be in cooperation with tribal
input during the study.
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, Mr. BUTLER. Mr. Chairman, I am not directly, personally involved
in that study. It is being conducted under the direction of Dr. Earl
Barlow, the Director of the Office of Indian Education.

It is my understanding, however, that the study is being conducted
under, a contract with an Indian educational consulting firm in
Phoenix, and my area social worker in Phoenix was privileged to be
at one of their briefings in March in which it was my understanding
that they had just finished the study on the demographic data, that
the field work had actually not started at that point in time.

But certainly, in my personal judgment, it should be conducted in
full consultation with the tribe.

Senator MELCHER. The committee will send a letter to Earl
Barlow and cite our interest. It will bea much better study if the
tribe is involved in it rather than the tribe reviewing it after the study
is completed.

Patty?
Ms. MARKS. I have one point of suggestion, Mr. Chairman. I have

spoken personally with a number of tribal social workers in the past
few weeks as we were preparingfor this oversight, and I believe that
mal;lY of them-e-including myself-were unaware that this study is
takmg place or IS even being contracted out.

Perhaps one of the best ways of obtaining Indian input would be if
the Bureau, or some mechanism, would send notification in the form
of a press release-something that simple would do--simply notifying
the tribes and the appropriate officials that this is taking place and who
the contact person is if they have specific information which might be
acceptable and needed in this study.

Senator MELCHER. It sounds to us, Patty, that mainly the study
will center on the Navajos. Is that correct, Mr. Butler?

Mr. BUTLER. Mr. Chairman, there is no question about this because
the Navajo Nation has roughly 50 percent of all of the-Indian children
in boarding school care, that is, in boarding school care by the Bureau
of Indian Affairs. A large number of these-and the gentleman from
the Navajo can correct me if I am wrong-are in what are referred to
as 5-day boarding schools where the children do go home on weekends.
Is that correct?

Mr. ROANHORSE. Before I go to that question, I would also like to
say for the record that we were not aware of the study that is being
made in ,the Phoenix area or the contractor that has been agreed upon.

On this study, I think there are some schools that still exist on the
Navajo Reservation that encompass not only the 5-day boarding
schools, but the 9-month boarding school setup.

Senator MELCHER. Getting back to your point.. Patty, we would
encourage the Bureau to communicate with the tribes, however it can,
that the study has been contracted for, and that input from the tribes
is sought, Since at least half of the youngsters are from.theNavajo
Nation, obviously, a great part of this study will zero in on the Navajo,
but we would like to have the input, observations, and recommenda­
tions from other tribes as well.

The act is fairly new, but what is your experience so far in working
in cases with the States and the tribes? Does it look like it is going to
work out? Are States and tribes going to cooperate with each other?
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Mr. HIRSCH. I think so. I had an interesting experience 'Yhich.I
think is indicative of what is happening across the country WIth this
law. Shortly after it was enacted, Twas invited by the South Dakota
supreme court to address all of the justices of that supreme court plus
most of the other trial court judges from around South Dakota on what
the law does. .

At the outset of the couple of days that I spent with the judges m
South Dakota there was a fair amount of hostility and lack of under­
standing abou't the law. But as time went on in that meeting, the
chief justice of the supreme court of South Dakota expressed hIS very
strong support for the law, and all the other judges fell in line. The
attorney g~neral's offic~ there, which had originally been contemplat­
ing some kind of constitutional challenge to the law, has apparently
dropped any thought of pursuing that approach. . . . .

That has been my experience across the eountry-c-an initial period
of trying to understand what the Congress was doing and why,. and
then an approach which is basically on~ of c?OperatlOn WIth the tribes,
Pretty much, the law has been working; It has been workmg well ;
the tribes have been pleased with it; the States have been workmg
with it; and I do not think that there has been an~ma]orproblems.

There have been a couple of court challenges to different aspects of
the law. In each case, the law has sucessfully WIthstood those chal­
lenges. I think that will be the trend as time goes on.

Senator MELCHER. Thank you very much; I am glad to hear that.
Thank you,j'teve and Patty, for your testImony.
We have a number of witnesses who do not f!leem to be here. I do

not see Mickey Old Coyote. No! do I see .David Rudolph or Donna
Loring. Oh, they are here; they Just came in.

WoUld you please approach the .witness table now? I am under a
time constraint which I cannot avoid, I want to complete my remarks
now., ..' h

Testimony from the Crow Indian Tribe rep.re~entatIv~s w 0 ,are
not here will be made a part of the record when It IS snbmibted, with-
out objection. .

[The following letter and memorandum were subsequently received.]



FOREST HORN,Chairman
ANDREW BIRDINGROUND, vtcechanman

THEODORE (Te.d),HOGAN,Secretary
RONALD LITTLE LIGHT, Vice Secretary

PHONE: Area Code (406) 638-: ext.. ;', ."

MEMORANDUM

June 19, 1980

OFFICE Of THE SECRETARY

CROW AGENCY, MONTANA 59022

CROW TRIBAL COUNCIL

Those r e c omme nd e dffo r attendance are: Raymond Butler f-renl
the c ommu nLtyv s e r vLce s Centra.l. Office Washington,:D.C."the
?~recto.r:s o f . each On-Going. C~ild Welfare Program of .• eac tl' tribe
l.n Montana; Tom Whl.teford, D~rector, Montana.Inter-t+ibal Policy
Board,· Merle Lucas, n i.r ec to r , .No n t.a n a. Indian Service n i.v i.sion , .a nd­
Represe tative form Senator Melcherls ,office, The ~Chief judge~

fromea h of the Reservatl.ons, and any other official that:well
be'bene ic~al.

Therefore, we r~quest,.a one,_day meeting .u n a s month .wd t h
the BIA Staff frum Whatever level necessary to'provide answers
and "fUnding during the course of the m~eting~
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<~e have -z ec a e ve d n:otifi'cation that we have been f u nd e'd
$16,,730.00 for out p r op o s a L of $77·~.94'6"'OO. It is our f e e'La nq
that token funding of this program is grossly in~dequateand

does not r-ec cq n aae nor address our problems.

Please, adv~se as to when this meeting can take place.

TO: AREA DIRECTOR, BILLINGS, MONTANA

FROM:; TRIBAL CHAIRMAN, CROW TRIBE ~­

-SUBJECT: CHILD- WELFARE ACT FUNDINGFY 81

Crow Country

Phone 406-638-2630
638-2996

Crow Agency, Montana 59022

July 8, 1980

Qf:C'{) JUL ' <1 1980

P.O. Box 489

Crow Tribal Court

ATTENTION: Pete Taylor

As Director of the On-Going-Child Welfare Program I am writing
to you on behalf of the Crow Tribe to express my concern regarding
the hand11ng of Title II funds by the Bureau of Indian Affa1rs.

I want you to know that the Crow Tribe like other Indian Tribes
viewed the enactment 'of the Indian Child Welfare Act as critical
legislation and it was prepared to carry on a child welfare program
under Title II. Incidently, 'since the enactment of the Indian Child
Welfare Act the 'Crow Tribal ,Court bas handled a numner of child cus­
tody proceedings recently however, the Crow Tribe have not been noti­
fied of token funding under Title II of this same act.

I certainly do not want to intimidate that the Crow Tribe reject
or is any way ungrateful for the approx1mately'$16,OOO.00 it is to
receive howaver , I am concerned about.rche procedure utilized bY',!the
Bureau of Indian Affairs and the continuing difficulties in contract~

ing such a small program. In 'handling'thefundingof various Tribes
here in the Billings.Ar~a the Bureau of Indian Affa.irslead, all of
us to believe that we should take time and effort in preparing pro­
posals and submitting· same for funding. The 'Bureau :didsay that'al~

Tribes would probably receive no·less ·then,the"minimum,whi-ch was,
approx1mately 15 to 16 thousand ,however, : the proposal SUbmitted based
upon merit after proper 'evaluation could:def'initely: receive, more.
It is a sad commentary to note that the B.I.A. put Tribes through
time andeffo~tregardingpreparation of proposals opted for the
easy way out in funding Indian Tribes the minimum.

Of course, we realize that the money :situation is tight ,however,
we at Crow raise the question whether or not the understanding as
handled by the B.I.A. will do anyone any good. I'amsure the Bureau
will make the argument that th~s was the most equitable and fa1r way
(i.e. funding each Tribe just a little) but th1s certainly would be
questionable furthermore, we at Crow were never asked how the funds
should be distributed and therefore, could not offer our input.

We have requested a meeting with the proper officials here at
the Billings Area Office however, in the hopes that this will not
happen again. Also, we would appreciate your ents

,~~'
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Dear Mr. Taylor

Senator John Melcher
Select Committee on Indian Affairs
United States Senator
Washington, D.C. 20510



126

Senator MELCHER. Any other comments can be made part of the
record also, by ap-yone wishing to submit them in writing. The hearing
record WIll remain open for 10 days.

Our next witnesses are David Rudolph and Donna Loring. David,
please proceed.

STATEMENT OF DAVID RUDOLPH, ADMINISTRATIVE ASSISTANT,
CENTRAL MAINE INDIAN ASSOCIATION, PRINCETON, MAINE,
AND DONNA M. LORING, EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. RUDOLPH., Good morning, Mr. Chairman.
Donna Loring is the executive director of the Central Maine Indian

Association, and she has our statement.
Senator MELCHER. Ms. Loring?
I have a time ,constraint; it is afternoon now; I should have left

here about 10 minutes ago. Do you have a really short statement?
Ms. LORING. It is not really that short.

, M~. RUDOLPH. Briefly, the statement that~~weregoingto present
IS ,qUIte a lengthy statement WIth several additions to-it.Btrtwe have
trieq to abbreviate it into a two page presentation,if that will be
all right, SIr.

Senator MELCHER. Certainly; that will be fine.
Ms .. LoRI~m. I am Donna Loring, and lam a Penobscot and the

executive director of the. Central Maine Indian Association. The
purpose of my' presen?e IS to express concern" about, the .. way the
~ureau of Indian Affairs IS handlmg the, Indian Child Welfare Act
title II I$rants progra~. As I am limited,as to my time, I wish to express
my f~ehngs by showmg a few examples of the Bureau's inadequate
handhng of this situation.

I feel the Bureau was not prepared to handle a grant application
J!rogram. They .we~e not prepared to give us a receipt when we de­
l~vered our application to the central office of the Bureau in Arlington,
Va, They discussed, m our presence, the review process and made
some off-the-cuff decisions.

I feel t~e Bureau did ~ot follow its own regulations. They did not
have application kits available: they di~ not provide technical assist­
ance b~fore, tur!?-mg us down: they required of us community support
letters in VIOlatIOn .of section 23.25(b(3); and they certainly violated
sectIO,n 23.27(c) (1) in the development of their funding formula.

This was not proportionately equitable for off-reservation native
American programs which got only 26 percent of the funds while
trymg to serve ?5 percent of the native American people. Thus the
$l5,00q was not in any sense an effective program funding level. At the
sam,e time, we were turned down because we applied for $93,000 as
advised to do so by a high rankmg Bureau official.

I feel that the Bure.au'~ review was not adequately performed.
Our program application was severely criticized because it re­

sembled, too closely, our current continuing research and demonstration
grant from the Administration for Public Services. We were hoping to
continue our demonstration efforts chiefly.

Our goals were not those, of the act-prevention and outreach­
yet 65 percent of the activities related to those efforts. Other efforts
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included in our application were code development, foster home licensing
efforts,and so on.

Our appeal material was not reviewed during that procedure. Again,
only our initial application seems to have been criticized.

I could go on, but Central Maine Indian Association's administrative
assistant, David Rudolph, has prepared extensive and more detailed
comments which you can read.

Briefly, I would like to make a few recommendations: That the
Bureau be required to follow its own regulations; propose an appro­
priate funding formula which will support effective programs, available
ona competitive basis; and establish appropriate program announce­
ments, application kits, review criteria, and technical assistance
procedures.

If you have any other questions, especially relating to details of our
problems, Mr. Rudolph and I will be happy to answer them.

We had planned to hand deliver some testimony from Mr. Wayne
Newell, but we did not quite make connections, so we do not have that
testimony.

Senator MELCHER. We have this material submitted by you. With­
out objection, it will be included in the record at the end of your
testimony.

I think you both came in during the last few minutes. We have been
going over these same pertinent points that you have made. We have
been going over them with the Bureau, and we hope that your recom­
mendations. which have been pretty much the recommendations that
we have been trying to stress with the Bureau, willbe carried out from
now on. Granted, they had a very short period of time to get this in
motion. We are not completely satisfied with their efforts so far; nor
are they. So I think we are all talking the same language.

The Bureau is requesting $150,000 in the budget this year to estab­
lish two new courts in Maine.

Mr. RUDOLPH. Is that child welfare courts, or is that just general
tribal courts?

Senator MELCHER. They are tribal courts to handle child welfare.
Mr. RUDOLPIL Yes; but as far as I know, in the propositions for

those-I have been following the Federal Register-they did not have
any child welfare, aspects-in those tribal courts at the .time. Now,
whether they are adding them or not I do not know.

Of course, we represent off-reservation Indians.
Senator MELCHER. We can only go on their testimony, and that is,

that part.of.theirjustification is the Indian Child Welfare Act, aspart
of their testimony for the justification of the two new courts. It in­
volves a total of 14 new courts, 2 of which are in Maine.

Mr. RUDOLPH. I see.
We are not under their jurisdiction, unfortunately. We are an

off-reservation entity, so that does not benefit the people who live off
reservation primarily.

Senator MELCRER. Wait a minute; let' us get clear on that, ,Are
you representing the Penobscot? " '.

Mr. RUDOLPH. Donna is a Penobscot. The Central MaineTndian
Association represents off-reservation native Americans in the southern
15 counties of Maine,

Senator MELCHER. I see.
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Mr. RUDOLPH. Essentially, that will not affect us. And as we have
analyzed our study under the research and demonstration program,
the interesting factor is that the State intervenes in cases on a 4-to-l
ratio, off to on reservation native American families. This is of great
concern to us since they are more accessible to the State and do not
have all of the supports that the tribal situation can offer on the reserva­
tion. Our population is more easily affected and does not have the
supports.

Senator MELCHER. We will try to co?perate with you. That does
seem to be very much a problem that will not be addressed by these
two new courts. We will try to cooperate with you and see whether
we can work out something that fits within the budget requests that
will be of help to you in this coming fiscal year.

Mr. RUDOLPH. We will be very happy to keep in touch with you SIr.
Senator MELCHER. All right. Thank you very much;
[The prepared statement follows:]

CENTRAL MAINE INDIAN ASSOCIATION INC.,
Orono, Maine, June 30,1980.

Re Testimony before Oversight Hearings on the Indian Child Welfare Act.
Senator JOHN MELCHER, Chairman,
Select Committee on Indian Affairs,
Washington, D.C.

GENTLEMEN: I am Donna Loring and I am a Penobscot and the Executive
Director of Central Maine Indian Association. The purpose of my presence is to
express concern about the way the Bureau of Indian Affairs is handling the Indian
Child Welfare Act Title II Grants program. As I am limited as to my time I
wish to express my feelings by showing a few examples of the Bureau's inadequate
handling of this situation.

I feel the Bureau was not prepared to handle a grant application program. They
were not prepared to give us a receipt when we delivered our application to the
Central Office of the Bureau in Arlington, Virginia. They discussed in our pres-
ence, the review process and made some off-the-cuff decisions. '

I feel the Bureau did not follow its own regulations. They did not have appliea­
~ion kits available-23.23. They did not provide technical assistance before turn­
mg us down-23.29(b)(2-4). They required of us community support letters in
violation of 23.25(b)(3).

They certainly violated 23.27 (c) (1) in the development of their funding formula.
.This was not proportionately equitable for off-reservation Native American pro­
grams ,,:hich got only 26 percent of the funds while trying to serve 65 percent of
the Native American People. Thus,the $I5,000,was not in any sense an effective
program funding leveI.At the same time we were turned down because we applied
for $93,000 as advised to do so by a high ranking Bureau official.

I feel that the Bureau's review was not adequately performed.
Our program application was severely criticized because it resembled too closely

our current continuing research and demonstration grant from Administration
for Public Services. We were hoping to continue our demonstration.efforts
chiefly. '

Our goals were not those of the ACT-"prevention and outreach"-yet 65
percent of the activities related to those efforts. Other efforts included in our
application were code development, foster home licensing efforts, etc.

Our appeal material was not reviewed during that procedure. Only our initial
application seems to have been again criticized.

I ~ould go on, but Central Maine Indian Association's Administrative Assistant,
DaVId Rudolph, has prepared extensive and more detailed comments which you
can read.

Briefly I would like to make a few recommendations. That the Bureau be
req)lired .to follow its ow~ regulations; propose an appropriate funding formula
WhICh. WIll suppo~·t effective programs, available on a competitive basis; and
establish appropriate program announcements, applicatiori kits review criteria
and technical assistance procedures. '
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If you have other questions, especially relating to details of our problems, Mr.
Rudolph and I will be happy to answer them.

We also are hand delivering testimony of a similar nat,!re on behalf of Wayne
Newell Director of Health and Social Services of the Indian Township Reserva­
tion of'the Passamaquoddy Tribe.

Thank you for your time and your concern.

PREPAR~JD STATEMENT OF DONNA lVI. LORING OF THE CENTRAL MAINE INDIAN
ASSOCIATION INC., PREPARED BY DAVID L. RUDOLPH, ADMINISTRATIVE
ASSISTANT

Gentlemen: It is with concern that I, Donna Loring, a Penobscot and Executive
Director of Central Maine Indian Association, come here today. Concern that
has become alarm as I hear other testimony and recall our exoerIences m regard
to problems around the administration of the Indian Child Welfare A?t by the
Bureau of Indian Affairs. ...

To put it bluntly, Central Main Indian Association staff, who have beer; m­
volved in the development of this Act and the development of the regulations,
and who have been involved in the operation of a child and family support re­
search and demonstration program for the past two and. a. half years,. have had
nothing but problems with their attempt to secure a c~mt~nuing program grant
under the Indian Child Welfare Act. I emphasize contmumg for reasons WhICh
will be apparent later. . . . . .

As you can see, we have been involved in the Indian Ch~ld. 'Yelfare Act rlght
from the start. In fact our planner, who doubles as our legislative and adminis­
trative agency "watch dog," has had to spend innum~rable hourspreparmg
comments regarding to the regu.lations.. He has had. to pomt out. or; three occ.as­
sions where off-reservation Native American organiaations were virtually being
cut out of access to these funds as authorized under Title II, Sec. 202 of the A~t.

Definitions were incomplete in regard to this population until we ehecked With
legislative committee staff to secure an interpretation ?f the .LegislatIve Intent.

Formula for the distribution of funds in the regulations still are weighted to
federally recognized tribes in that "actual or estimated Indian child placements
outside the home" based on data from tribal and public court records, etc. are
to be counted. (23.25(a)(I)) . .. .

Our study shows that over the two and a half ~ean, of. (;)\11' continuing grant,
Maine's Human Services system intervened in Indianfamilies on a ra~IO of 4-1,
off- to on-reservation Indian families. But, upon exammmg the public .records,
department records, only 19 of the 34 records reviewed clearly identified the
family or the child as Native American.

But let me pass on to our grant application problems. Again, right from the
start we had troubles. We feel that the Bureau was not, or at best ill, prepa:ed to
handle a grant program; did not follow its own regulations in a seemingly arbitrary
manner; and mishandled the review process. .

The following "events" illustrate the grounds of these feelings:
Our Planner was unable to secure from the "nearest" Bureau offic!,-~he

Eastern Regional Office here in D.C., or from the Central Office application
kits which were supposed to exist per theregula~ions,23.23, and as referred to
in the Program Announcement-Federal Register, 4 December 1979, page
69732. It was agreed we could use our Administration IorNative Americans
format.

Our Planner was unable to determine from the Program Announcement,
cited above, the program priorities which would have precedence for this
grant cycle. . .,

Having read and re-read the Grant FU~d Dlstn~utIonFor~ula( our Plan­
ner, in desperation, called the Bureau WIth questlO~s regardingIt. He was
told by a ranking official that the formula should be interpreted In .sneh.and
such a fashion. The final figure jointly agreed to totalled $95,000.

Regardless, he forged ahead and prepared what we all thought was an appro-
priate application. . ...

Then came the delivery of the Grant package. ~ot knowing I;ow many.packag~s
we had to deliver, our Planner and I hand delivered 15 copies to. the Bureau s
office in Arlington on the morning of 15 Janua:ry 1980 for the ,de.adlme ofI8Jan­
uary. Also, we were told by the Eastern Regional Office to deliver these to the
Central office.
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We were asked to leave only five (5) copies, and when we asked for a receipt the
reaction was "For What?" This constitutes another violation of their own regula­
tions-23.29 (b) (1).

Not knowing the make-up of the reviewing team for the Eastern Area
applications we indicated we were going to drop some copies off to various H.E.W.
personnel. We were told that those we named-our Administration forPuhlic
Assistance research and demonstration project officer and our Indian Child Welfare
Act contact in Administration for Native Americans, would be reviewing grant
applications. It was decided, off-the-cuff, to have reservation personnel review
off-reservation applications and vice-versa.

The review was promptly done, but!! The reviewer's comments indicated:
Our program needed to be "recast to reflect current goals and objectives"

under Title II for a "strong concentration on prevention .and outreach." 65
percent of our activities planned pertained thereto, and the balance targeted
code development, preparation of Native American homes for licensing as
foster homes, foster home parent training, staff training, etc.

Our travel allowances were not appropriate. Under our secured research
and demonstration grant, yes; but not under this grant action. How were we
to know that? We have witnessed constant travelto the Bureau on the part of
nearby tribal staffs for training, board staffs for introduction to Board respon­
sibilities, etc. Again, how were we to know? Certainly there were no program
guidelines in the Program Announcement.

From the review comments we feel we definitely were prejudicially reviewed
by someone who had a thorough knowledge of our A.P.S. research and demon­
stration grant, but did not know of our continuing problems.

The commentor evidenced a lack of understanding of the Bureau's own
regulations: "There was not sufficient evidence of support from the com­
munity," etc. However, Regulation 23.25(b) (3) seems to exempt an off­
reservation Indian organization from "the demonstrated ability has operated
and continues to operate an Indian child welfare or family assistaneeprogram."
We also feel that statement should have given Central Maine Indian
Association somewhat of an edge over other programs which had never
dealt with such problems.

Finally, in violation of another regulation23.29,(b) (2-4), and ourrequest ,
the Bureau did not offer technical assistance to clear up any application gaffs
before the final review and issuance of denial of the grant. In fact we feel they
did not carry out their three level review process (23.29, 23.31,23.33). But we
don't find that appropriate either as it is too long a process.

Needless to say, we appealed. In that appeal our Planner addressed application
deficiencies mentioned, pared down the budget request, etc. In other words, we
accepted the comments as technical assistance. What happened? From a review
of the comments on our appeal we feel the reviewer did not review the materials
submitted, but instead picked more severely, and. incorrectlY,at our initial
application.

More woes could be recounted, but.I would like to proceed to what we feel
should be done to correct this situation for another go-around:

We feel the funding formula is a mockery of even common sense and cer­
tainly of the Bureau's own regulations that "insofar as possible all approved
applicants (will) receive a proportionately equitable share sufficient to fund
an effective program." (23.27 (c) (1»; (Emphases ours.)

Twenty-six percent of the funding was given to off-reservation Native
American agencies and is not proportionately equitable since 65 percent of
all ~ative Americans live off-reservation according to A.N.A. .

FIfteen thousand dollar grants cannot be termed sufficientfor.an effective
program.

We do wish to inform the Committee that we have considered proceeding with
an injunction to stop the entire funding until these problems could be addressed.
We have deferred on that for the present.

We do have some recommendations. Let us describe them:
1. If the funds have not been given out yet, we ask this committee to freeze

them until the Bureau can appropriately distribute them. Otherwise .for the next
program year the gra;n:ts should not 1?e g~ve-away, "be all things t~ all people,"
types, but a competitive grant application approach for the establishment of
effective programs with a base of at least $60,000. This should include demonstra­
tion funds at 80 percent, planning funds at 15 percent and research funds at 5
percent. Also, this year's grant programs ought not be c'ounted as part of a "con-
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tinuing" base and that that base should grandfather programs operative prior to
1979-1980.

2. If, as we hear there may be, there is an attempt by the Bureau to merge
other social service funding sources with the Indian Child Welfare Act program
resources, we wish to go on record-

Opposing such a move as we feel the Bureau has an obligation to increase
the proportion of funding to off-reservation Native Americans, now only
26 percent, to at least 65 percent of the Indian Child Welfare Act related
funds. \

Opposing such a move as we feel the Bureau has ~very poor record of
advocacy for Native Americans in general, and probably will have less of a
commitment to off-reservation Native Americans as they have never had to
deal with any entities except federally recognized tribes.

3. Mandate that the Bureau follow its own regulations.
We wish to acknowledge that the Bureau-

Was under the gun time-wise as to the drafting of regulations and the
start-up as set by Congress. However, there were internal delays and we see
in the regulations many areas of delay-the three tier review-and experienced
them-the review of our appeal was to have been in our hands in April; we
heard in May another violation of their own regulations.

Had no experience with competitive grant processes or off-reservation
entities. However, we recommended in writing that they get in touch with
agencies in H.E.W. - A.P.S. or A.N.A., and use their procedures. Certainly
the poor program announcement and the lack of the availability of application
packets indicates the Bureau did little to prepare adequately.

Had problems securing from O.M.B.an approval of its funding formula;
this the Bureau staff indicated was mostly a time delay. We know O.M.B. is
famous for that and they should be criticized severely. However, if this
funding formula is an example of what the Bureau was giving O.M.B., we
can understand O.M.B.'s reluctance to approve it, especially since it is
virtually a give-away of $5.5 millions which will in no way improve the tragic
conditions cited in the ACT. We feel this Committee should view this with
alarm especially now because of the demand for fiscal accountability.

Needless to say, there is more on my mind, but time does not permit. Idothank
the Committee for allowing Central Maine Indian Association to represent that
one-quarter of the grantees-the off-reservation Native American grantees, but
feel sad to have to speak for 65 percent of all Native Americans. We humbly
request that the above cited problems be addressed quickly to prevent another
tragedy for our People.

Thank you.
Attachments.
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69732 Federal Register! Vol. 44. No. 234 / Tuesday, December 4, 1979 i Notices

United States Departmentof the Interior'
BUREAU OF INDIAN AFFAIRS

WASHINGTON, D.C. 20245

THIS IS TO VERIFY THE FIVE (5) COPIES OF THE MAINE INDIAN

FAMILY SUPPORT SYSTEM FOR INDIAN CHILD WELFARE TITLE II

GRANTS WERE SUBMITTED TO THE BIA SOCIAL SERVICES OFFICE

(CENTRAL OFFICE) ON 15 JANUARY 1980. DEADLINE FOR

SUBMISSION OF GRANT PROPOSALS IS 18 JANUARY 1980.

IN REPLY REFER TO:

Indlan Child Welfare Act; Title II Grant
Application.

This notice is published in exoenase
of authority delegd 1.:0by the Socretary
of the mtenor to the Assi:~tanl

Secretary, indian Affairs by 209 01'0,1 a.
Tille II of the mdlan Child Welfure

Act ofUl78 euthcrizes the Secretarv or
the rntenor to make grants to Indiail
tribes and Indian c-gemxenons for
establishment and operation of Indian
child and family service programs.

The initial period for BuiJmiltlTlS grunt
eppllcunone IS effective this date and
will end lenuary 18. 1980. Addltfonal
periods for submission of gran!
eppllcencns will be announced at a
later date If funds remain avatluble lIfH:r
the fir_slgrant eppltcetion pcnod. In this
regard it IS necessary thet specific
tlmefrumea be established for
submission 01appllcatlons sc that all
approved epphcents can re.cilive 1:1

pmporucnataly equitable share of
available grant funds.

Application matsrlals and reiailld
fnforrn<ltinnmay be obtained Irom
Bureau of Indian Affairs offic<!snearest
the applicant. Appl/calions for this
Initial application period will be

r:~~~~~ *it~;~c:u,*~~c~~ A'lr;~i~~~ilh!J At:
application approv:al8 will be subjecl If)~

;;~~~~l~t:r:~~unds. fa_~. '
A$pi$WnfSecrelory,indiGnAIf..uirs. 'E:-o- _ iG.~
IFRD<Io:·7D-3?lmrlkdl:l-:l-7Il>M,5_1I.o1 f\
IllLLlNOCODE'~lo-02-M

computenon. the total national Indian
client population figure will be baaed
upon the best information available
from the U.S.Bureau of the Census lllUi

the Bureau of Indian Affairs, and ctnor
idenlifi.llblestatisticairesllurces.

If the gr~nt appllcent has requested
lees grant Junes than would be provided
under the above formula the approved
applJcant will be funded at the level
specifically requested in the appllcanon
FlXftIltJ.Otlrani.
Asnaom Se;;retory. mdion Affairs.
Nl,lvember27,1919.
(FRDuc:..~I~fjl.d12--l-111.M5·,"i

IIlU.JHQCOGE.31o.-ln-M

agencies; and tcl tc demonstrate the
tramtng 01 professional and
parsprcless.onal personnel to provide
home health services, as defined in
eecncn 1861(m} of the Social SeCW'it)'
Act.

4. Redelegatton by the Administrator,
Health Services Adm.tnistration, to the
Dfrectcr, Bureau of Community Health
Services, Health Services
Administration, with authority to
redelegate, or all the autnonuee
delegated ~y the Assistant Secretary for
Health 10 the Admmlstrator, Health
Services Administration, under section
339 of the Public Health Service Act, as
amended, exciuding the auttloritles
specifically delegated to the Regional
Health Administrators.

The above delegation and
radelegattons were effective on
November 13, 1979,

Dated: November 26. 1979.
Fredericlr.M.Bobllll,
AppiptaIll Secretary IlJrManogement WId
Budget.
jF1I~.18--3"''''1I'lJodU+7lI;8'A5&m1

eII.UMG CODE411D4Hl1

Public Health Service

proPosing that the color additive
ragulanous be amended 10 provide for
the safe use of grape color extract in
food and drug_ exempt from
certification,

The environmental Impact analysis
report and other relevant material have
been reviewed, and it has been
determined that the proposed use of the
additive will not have a significant
environmental impact Copies of the
environmental impact analyaia report
may be seen in the office of the Hearing
Clerk ,HFA-305), Food and Drug
Administration, Rm. 4--65, 5600Fishers
Lane, ROCkville,MD 20857,between 9
a.m.and 4 p.m.. Monday through Friday.

Dslad: November 26, 1~g.
5ao.lotdA.Mill8r,
Ilirector, Bureau of Foods.
fFRDrx;.~nta<llH-7l1;a:'5I"'J

IlLlJHO CODE 41t-..

Home Health Services; Delegations of
Authority

Notice te hereby given that there bave
been mad.e the folloW1ngdelegation IlIld
redelegeucne of authority regarding DEPARTMENT OF THEINTERIOR
home health eervicee under eecuca 339
of the Public Health Service Act (42 Bureau of Indian AHaira

U'::%::~t~~na~e~:~cretary ~f 'ndlan Child Welfare ACt; Grant Fund
Health, Education. and Welfare to the Distribution Fomlula
Asstetant Secretary for Health. with This notice is published In exercise of
authortty to eedelegete, of all the authority delegated by the Secretary of
authorities, excluding the authori:lY to the Interior _tothe ASSistant Secrelary,
issue regulations, vested In the Indian Affairs by 200DM 8.
Secretary under section 339 of the Public Ti\je II c! the mdian Child Welfare
Health Service Act, ee amended. Act 011978 autaonzes tbe Secretary of

2. Redelegaucn by the Assistant the Interior to make grants to indiaD
Secretary for Health to the tribes and Indian organizations for
Administrator, Health Services establishment and operation of Indian
Administration, with authority to child and family service programs.
redelegete,of all the euthoritiea In order to ensure inesfer liS possible
delegated by the Secretary to the thai all approved applicants receive a
Aeststent Secretary for Health under proportionately equitable share of
section 339 of the Public Health Service availa~lE:Jlr8nt funds the distribution of
Act, 8S amended. Ihese Junds will be eccompliahed In

3. RedelegaUon by theAdminJstrator, accordance with the following formuia:
Health Services Administretion, to the Each grant applicant approved under the
Regional Health A~8trators,Public provialoDsoUS CPR 23 ranking and

~:SI~~e~l:d:l:~~~~~~~~~rl~ ~~:~ ~i~~~S~~~:~jt~~:ive (al
ma~e grants, o~er than grants tha a 1)..- a aae amount equal to .2% o.ftotal grant

~:~li~~n~~~~g:opnJ~;~ee:~~ to~ e~:e:.v{~i~:·~:~~=11:~:~~~ris Cabazon Band of Mlaslonlndiana,
within their respective regions (a) to grant ewerc cannot exceed an c.lffomia; Ordinance Regulating and

:pee~t8~~~~:~hOe~~th~;::~~:~ ~d ~ds~W~,~: :i::~e~~lrer;t~l~t ~~-:::~;:~r::;~:t~~~~a"tI~~dBeYeragftl
expand the services available through percentage_ofthe total national Indian This Notrce is published in
existing agencies; (b) to meet the COlli of client population to be served b.IJbe accordance withautborlty delegated by
compeneeting p~ofe8sionalanct 8I'.!!ll-JU!P.llcantlsmultiplied by the total the Secret ..ry of the Interior to uie
p~r~protesllional peracnneld~ the amo~t ofitant fund.s remalpitul after .Assistant Secretary-Indian Affairs by

\ mruel operation oftuCb a~en.Clee, ~e S (eJ,abov~ ISaccompbehed for"llil r\~~DM 6, and In accordance W.ith the
expansion of eervrce of eXlll~ ,-,\!:"'I., ~eProved grant applicant•. In U.l.s ~n.ct of August 15, 1953, Pub. L. 27'1,B3n1

~ ~CC~C ~~,,~ ;;::7c~'( L!tv0\1!:1,l'1~ O;~'~'1I7\t,'-e-N~
<:D -( \V '9' Q.'l',SfYu."cv}[p. "., .•~,AJ\1\DL ~O;L<.("

i' .'1:v~", . Il- Zf ,~~\
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United States Department of the .Inrerior
BUREAU OF INDIAN AFFAIRS

EASTERN AREA OFFICE

1951 Constitution Avenue NW.
Washington, D.C. 20245

RECEIVED:-EB 25 \980

fEB.t 5 jlf!

Donna Loring, President
Central Maine Indian Association, Inc.
95 Main Street
Orono, Maine 04473

Dear Ms. Loring:

We regret to iriformyou that your grant application 'for .fund.Ing .under
Title II of the Indian Child Welfare Act, entitled "Maine Indian Family
Support System", has been disapproved.

Attached you will find the review comments which were the primary' basis
for our decision concerning your grant. Please review the comments and
the questions concerning your·application.for future reference. Our staff
will be available to answer any questions you may have. This does not
prevent you from submitting an application during subsequent grant
application periods.

You do have a right to appeal this decision (refer to 25 CFR 23, Subpar~F

for further information).
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It is the consensus of the application review panel that the grant
proposal submitted by the Central Maine Indian Association does not meet
the minimum standards for funding as imposed by Title II of the Indian
Child Welfare Act. In rendering its decision, the panel identified the
following areas of concern:

i. Strictly speaking, the grant application submitted to the Bureau
of Indian Affairs is not an up-to-date assessment of conditions in the
proposed service area; essentially, therefore, the reviewers were asked
to assume that all data and documentation in the application package
remained pertinent to the current situation. Apparently, the proposal
was prepared some time ago for submission to the Department of Health,
Education, and Welfare,and successfully competed in that agency for
Title XX funding.

2. Certain items in the application, such as the research component
and allowances for staff travel to Albuquerque, were jUlltifiable"in the
original Title XX Research and Demonstrat1onapp11cation",buthave.,no
revelance to the activity presently being proposed for funding ,under Title
II of the Indian Child Welfare Act.

3. There was not sufficient evidence of support from the community,
public agencies or other local service providers.

4. The proposal does not adequately discuss the extent to which the
program duplicates existing services.

5. The program is somewhat weak in regard to staff qualifications.

The review panel noted that the .general attitudes and philosophy
conveyed in the .writing ot. this' proposal are commendable. .'Also .acknowl.edged
was the Association's good record as a provider of services. It"is the
panel's recommendation that .this proposal be recast to reflect current
goals and objectives that are specific to Title II of the Indian Child
Welfare Act, and that· the proposed budget be altered accordingly. A
strong concentration on prevention and outreach is suggested.,
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Dear Louise:

March 5, 1980

2. Research and Travel items in the application seemed, to .have weLgneu
heavily against' the application and had no "relevance to the activity
be fng proposed for funding" - the need for a "strong concentration on
prevention and outreach." In point of fact:

• whatever research was proposed was basically to stem from
the evaluative process and comprised less than 3.7 percent
of the program time. Our feeling is that ~. grant applica­
tion which does not address evaluation/accountability in
some way is truly not worth considering.

1. Current assessment· of conditions: Apparently ..the reader is under the
impression t.hmge have changed in the proposed service area. Our
feeling and experience .isthat this is not strictly so. Officially
no changes have" t.aken p Lacejv.dn -onky a few isolated instances, and
only since we filed our application, have our outreach specialists
been called upon to impact cases involving Native American Child
Welfare cases. Research was carefully cited showing that most state
personnel attitudes are unfavorab.Ie. in that they feel there is .no
cultural difference - "we treat all our clients the same" - bet;E;"en
Indians and non-Indians; that there is no need to understand those
differences. In fact, only 5 percent of the respondents seemed eager
to understand, to lear.n about differences, or to work with Native
Americans. Also, 0. percent suggested an-neuse hiring of Native
Americans to .state program. This amounts toa prejudiced reading.
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HRANCH OFf'ICE
,',615 C..onUf(·SS Street
Portlaruf. Maine' ()4.IOt

(207) 775·1 R72

Reply to Orono

CENTRAL OFFICE

95 Main Street
Orono. Maine 04473
(207) 866-5587 / 5588

Louise Zokan, Director
Indian Child Welfare Act Program
Bureau of Indian Affairs
Division -of -Social Services
1951 Constitution Avenue, N.W.
Washington, DC 20245

According to our right to appeal the aecision of the Bureau to not fund
our application, -25 CPR 23, SUbpart. F, we. do now make that appeal.

~~~1))'\l;'- //-~~-----~----

Several of our reasons .have to eta with various aspects of the regulatory
language (lack. of clar1.ty), program, announcements, application review, etc.

• ~n the first place. the funding formula was variously interpreted
by Bureau perscnnel , .~n two occasions Ray Butler variously: inter..
preted to others in my hearing, .and rto me personally,; 'what would
cons t'r.tura base, funding to: provide an adequa te program:

To··the Penobscot planners the figure gaven was $165,-000+;
,r To me, two weeks prior --to our filing our application, a;a an

direct response to my asking for. an interpretation of the formula
announcemen tj. nestated it would be' $80,000 plus the .2 percent"
or $15,000, whLcheve'r is greater for an $95,000 sum. Now I am
told that actually the project budget; should not nave exceeded
$15,000 plus t~e .2 percent or $15,000 fora maximum of $30,000.
Now you may understand Why we put in for what we felt is an
aaequate program level of $95,000+. We suggest 100 programs @
$52,000 would be a more appropriate level of funding.

We e:ven requested, f.n our cover letter, communications from your office
if there, were any questions which would influence "apprcvaL" or "dis­
approval." This was not done.

• Application review and program announcement problems can best be
addressed by our responding to the issues cited in the letter of
Harry Rainbolt's, February 15, 1980.

• conference travel - lito Albuquerque" - amounted to a total
of $3, 000; an item which, upon consultation, COuld have been
deleted. It was included as there' were nospec1fic pro·gram
guidelines in the program· annoucement; ,

Should the reader have: adequateLy vread rthe proposal' he/she would have seen
very clearly·that··all 'the·Goals, and, Objectives spoke to prevention and out-
reach. Inpoiht ~fact:

• the -program annoucement did 'not specifya,:program priority.
(See attached).

• program methods 2, 3, 4, 6 & 7 (leaving only 1~5'& 8), accounting
for 89.2 percent of the programmatic time, speak to p r-eventfon ana
outreach. (See other comments under 4).

Again a prejudiced, or at best poor, reading.

3. Support of the Community: We WiSh to apologize for the lack 'in this
area, but feel it is not a significant cause for disapproval. We did
'file .coneef.euent and .j.egd.slatnve "letters of support. '.We had. asked
several agenci.es for letters of support, also. These responses were
not delivered obviously. In two cases agency representatives -aekeci
passed the ball on to another person. In one of these cases the
person responsible has been hampered in .any cosmundcacdone. witn us
due to orders from the State Attorney General's office to hold all
efforts until the Land Claims case is seetLed ; In another ..case -­
letters we're asked and have been delayed. We are making every effort
to correct this. We do have one question:

*** How many letters of support constitute conmunity support?
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Louise Zokan

4. Duplication of Services: No direct discussion waa.mace, Howeve rv.vt.he
implications that can be gained from the case management guide (Three
Phased Process, 4.3.3) indicates every attempt is .to be made to
utilize existing services. (See, also point ,'I. above). .Attiached is
our APPLICATION NARRATIVE AMENDMENT dealing with this autrj ec t t preven­
tion and outreach. (See attached).

5. Staff Qualifications: Central Maine Indian Association has made every
effort to secure as outreach specialists,: the area in. which we; seem to
be weakest as far as qualifications are conce rnec., Native Americans.

First. the reason for doing so is .obvaous s we need, a Native American:

• who may know eoaet.htng .about the "system" having used it
him/herself .

• who knows ,nis/herPeople.
• Who has gadned vsome t re rn'tng Zexper fence in s"lritilarareas.

Second, if we raised our qua.lLfdca t fons , we would be unable to .empLoy
--- Native Americans:

Just over 10 percent o f. our People .have attenaedorare
attending,post-secondary SChools. -- ­
None, to .our knowledge, have- studied in the, area of social
services.

With a 47 per-cent; unemp Lcyment; rate;
With a conviction tneten. "aware," "ready to Learn" Native
American is better at working with Indians th'all--a non-Indians;
w.ehave:c.hosen to hire 'and 'train 'our own. para-profess~onal
personnel. .Ef -rner eusiaweakness among our ,People'"it, .as
not in case work effectiveness, but tn eecoru keeping;" and
this is being cnanged by better reporting forms' (more
simplified),:requiring less -writing.

Now to the last paragraph of the letter. We thank the reviewers for their
observations regarding

• the wri ting.

• the Association is good record.

We are concerned:

• How.were we to ..know the "cur-rent;" (under-t fnmg not ours) goals and
objectives that are. specific' ,to Titlellof"the Indian Child
Welfare. Act?

• Who,set them .e s-preventnon and outreach only?

• Where was this publisned?
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Our reading of the "regulations" lists several appropriate objectives, from

• facilities for counseling and treatment' of Indian, families,
temporary custody of Indian children to

• preparation of codes. (See attached).

We are, and would have been very happy to "recast" our application; s funding
levels.

We are 'pleased. 'Louise; -you found'the proposal "well antegra ted": and that
"every component supported another." That is, as .Lt; shoul.d-be , Codes are
essential to a program; foster homes are a, must to underwrite emergency
placement, etc. But if outrea chrcf a preventive nature' Ls the goal/objec­
tive, so be i.t! As to. the finding of that piece to be funded, let us pro­
vide it. It is just a buuge t ar'y exercise asr t he majority of t ne program
was already outreach/prevention. We would CUT:

• Numbers '.ofcper-scnneL;

• Foster home recruitment and parent training;

• COde development;

• Staff developme~t/training;

• 'Out....of;..state·trave·l (The Bureau: better not
require alot of .grant compliance, e t c ; , training unless it will
provide travel costs - some t hdng we are not used to).

• Adm1nistrative allowances;

Some evaluative responsibilities; and

***. Concentrate on supervisory and outreach personnel and their
irmnediate supports.

(SEE BUDGET CHART ATTACHED)

It is our understanding that with these suggested cnange s , and li an approval
is given for funding our application Will. be placed last, on the_ approve.d list.
We object strenuously to being placed uendnd an application we~ to be
approved

• whose work program was cited as weak; we ma.ght; add also, Whose
record of accountability for thede1ivery of its services ~
also notoriously poor.

These elements of a program are the heart/mea t of a program. not peripheral
elements to be criticized - research, conference budget items, (both so
ins'ignificantas to time and value of the program), duplication 'of services,
staff qualifications, etc. We feel we c2.refully detailed our "work" and
"evafuaeaon" (accountability) efforts. L We also notice no mention of the~
waS made. 7 Again,we feel this is evidence of a prejudiced reading of the
applicati~n.
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3.4. Methods: Duplicative-
If the above is a true unde r's t.anddng, such a penalization is uncalled for,
especially in theiLLgn t; of the Bureau i s failure to

• .publishtheir program priorities clearly..

By experience, and by the revelations of our research under the NORTH-

EAST INDIAN FAMILY SUPPORT grant, Central Maine Indian Association is convinced

• make extremely clear the funding formula.

in the light of the Bureau's review process which made

• "peripheral" items more essential to the review ranking.

• no consultation with this applicant, but did so w1tn" others
to makecneedec cnanges ,

client advocacy is the activity of choice for our outreaCh specialists. In no

sense of the· word can Central Maine Indian Association develop a duplicate

service system for our constituency:

• Many viable services ex~st already.

see this effort as duplicative for the following reasons:

However, if any duplication can be said to exist, it would be solely in

• Case advocacy is a must for our People:

the area of an outreach case work effort. Nevertheless, the agency does not

Low level communication skills and a parallel unwillingness
to understand our Peoples' culture differences is another
major barr1er to successful case resolutions.

The lack of the readiness of "child welfare" services to hire
Native Americans to deal with Native Americans is obvious.

Cost of such an effort is prohibitive.

•

Functional illiteracy in dealing with non-Indian bureaucratic
''white-tape'' is a major barrier to services.

Discrimination is strong against Indians in Maine (home of
the landmark Land Claims Case).

•
• the definition of-an ad.eguate program impossible.

in .tne Ld.ght-cf the Bureau's not demanding

• the disqualification of a reviewer who obviously was familiar
w:lth our earlier R&D application; somecnmg we were promised
would be done.

We are sorry for the extent of this letter, but as W~ are making a~ appeal we
are "put ting our cards on the table. 11 At tne samet~m~ we are ~~lng to.
address those deficiences tinat; need change, and p rcvdddng you wa tn a revi.sco

financial application outline.

Pleas,e, wnen you r eceave this and if you nave any further, Questions, we ask

you to calL

Sincerely, 'J #
~,~;J1 e. )luJ)~ '"\

David L. Rudolph - ~
Administrative Assistant

Enclosures

DLR/bjc

The hiring of middle-class raised and trained college
graduates is the rule.

In Maine just over 10 percent of our People have attended
or are attending post-secondary sChools. To our knowledge
none have taken work in the field of social work.

Therefore, the lack of understanding and the resulting
communications gap.

• Emotional supports to this culturally different People are lacking:

Many have moved to find economic security only to find
few who "understand" them arotmd them.

Although in many instances enclaves of other Indians
exist, there are not as many of the close ties of the
"extended" family present.
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Thus, our basic service methodology will not be direct, or duplicative,

services; but advocacy, or liaison, services of a preventive/outreach nature.

In this effort Native Americans will work with the social services, "child/

family" welfare service, personnel on behalf of Native American clients to:

• Assure clients do follow-up agency referrals as required.

• Assure appropriate communications.

• Provide "emotional" supports in stressful experiences --

- when seeking help.

- when appearing in court.

- when faced with other family troubles -- loss of work.
hunger, alcoholism, loss of shelter, etc. all of which
can be interpreted as neglect.
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CENTRAL MAINE INDIAN ASSOCIATION

95 Main Street
Orono, Maine 04473

MAINE INDIAN FAMILY SUPPORT SYSTEH

FY '80 BUDGET

ITlli

PERSONNEL

Program Director
Outreach Specialist

TOTAL SALARIES

Fringe 16%

TOTAL PERSONNEL COSTS

EXPENSES

In-State Travel 393,ms/mo/worker at 18.5¢/m
Telephone $75/mo/worker
Training $250/workerjyear

TOTAL EXPENSE COSTS

TOTAL PROGRAM COSTS

5 March 1980

AMOUNT

$13,000
9,360

22,360

3,578

$25,938

$ 1,747
1,800

500

$ 4,047

$29,985
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United States Department of the Interior
OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY

WASHINGTON, D.C. 20240

MAY 1 1980
Ms. Donna Loring
President, Central Maine Indian

Association, Inc.
95 Main Street
Orono, Maine 04473

Dear Ms. Loring:

This letter will serve to acknowledge your correspondence of March 5
in which you appeal the decision of the Eastern Area Director to disapprove
your grant application to receive funds under the,Indian Child Welfare
Act of 1978.

It has been determined this proposal, as written, 'does not best promote the
purposes of Title 11 of the Act, as defined in 25 CFR 23.22. EXamples
of non-compliance ~th the regulations and/or the Application Selection
Criteria as stated in 25 CFR 23.25 are as follows:

1. While the grant application appears to meet the basic intent
of the Act, there is little quantitative or qualitative"narrativewhich
clearly states the scope of work to be performed or the goals to be
accomplished.

Moreover, the basic intent of the proposal does not convey the
policy of the Act as stated in 25 CFR 23.3 which is "to protect Iridian
children from arbitrary removal from their families and tribal affiliations
by establishing procedures to insure that measures to prevent the breakup
of Indian families are followed in child custody proceedings",.inorder
"to insure the protection of the best interest of Indian children and
Indian families."

2. Too often, the application refers to tbe term "support"; yet,
while some methodology can be tracked within the framework of the GANTT
chart process, little narrative can be found within the proposal which
develops the techniques or methods of "support."

3. The statement of need appears frsgmented, and while some data
is reflected at points within the proposal, no salient conclusions 'can be
drawn concerning the actual population(s) to be served.
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4. The application does not discuss proposed facilities and
resources in detail. For example, it is not clesr how $7,500 will
be spent in the line budget item "housing assistance" support.

A second area of concern is the distribution of time for the
Director of Program's, in that, it would appear that less than 100%
of time will be spent in directing the Indian Child Welfare Act Program.

5. The proposal presents minimal narrative as to the applicant's
in-depth understanding of social service and child welfare issues, and
culturally relevant methods of working toward the resolution of issues
which ~ll prevent the breakup of Indian families.

6. The proposal contains budget items which are not reasonable
considering the anticipated results. For example, $4,125 for travel
to out of area conferences which are not germane to the Indian Child
Welfare Act; housing assistance in the amount of $7,500 needs justifica­
tion, and travel for Director, Planner, and Board Membera to Washington,
D.C. in the amount of $2,625 seems extravagant.

We find the proposal does not meet the minimum criteria for funding
under Title II of the Indian Child Welfare Act. Therefore,the disapproval
decision of the Eastern Area Director is upheld. Under redelegated author­
ity from the Secretary of the Interior, this decision is fin~l for the
Department. !

Sincer",ly, !'
---XY? /r:)

It -~ rt,',fl/: /~-,\ ,---_../.-I£"f
istant- Secretary - Indian Af fairs
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MEMO:

TO:

FROM:

Re Federal Injunction Effort

Donna Loring, Executive Director
Board of Directors

David L. Rudolph, Administrative Assistant

Senator MELCHER. The hearing is adjourned.. Th.e record will re­
mam open for 10 days.

[Whereupon, at 12:10 p.m., the hearing was adjoumed.] .
[Subsequent to the hearing the following letters were received for

the record.]
DATE: 14 May 1980

The contact was made today.

I asked if there were others who had complained, He said, yes; often that
there was no meaningful guidance in the application effort, which is the
same complaint we have.

In coversation the following points were mad~following a brief description
of our situation and relationship with Bureau of Indian Affairs, specifically
ln regard to our M.I.F.F.S. application.

INTERNATIONAL CHILDREN'S PROGRAM,
Holton,Kans. JulyS, 1980.

Senator JOHN MELCHER
Chairman, Select Committee on Indian Affairs
U.S. Senate, '
Washingion, D.C.

Dear SENATOR MELCHER: This letter is in response to the committee hearing
on Implementation of'Lhe Indian Child Welfare Act, Public Law 95-'-608.
. The Inter-Tribal Children's Program serves the four federally recognized tribes
in th~ stat~ of Ka~sas. Th~ Iowa Tribe of Kansas and Nebraska, the Sac.& ~ox
of MISSOUri, the Kickapoo m Kansas and the Prairie Band of Potawatomi Tribe
of Kansas.

The program was initially funded under Indian Self-Determination.Act, Public
Law 93-638. In addition, we were funded with ongoing child welfare funds from
the Area Office of the Bureau of Indian Affairs in Anadarko, Oklahoma. This
funding provided for program operation from July 1, 1979, through February
1980. Funding for March 1980 through September 1980 was projected in our
grant application for Title II of Public Law 95-608.

Our program has a unique relationship with the state of Kansas. We are cur­
rently .licensing our own Indian foster homes statewide serving all Indians in
the state of Kansas. The state funds our foster homes. Weare working closely
with the various courts located in the counties within the. state. We are actively
working toward full implementation of the Indian Child Welfare Act. The Indian
Child Welfare Act has resulted in a professional inter-tribal program. It is im­
perative that for continued existence, funding be available.

The following is a list of possible barriers to implementation of the Indian
Child Welfare Act and the Inter-Tribal Children's Program:

1. Funding for the Inter-Tribal Children's Program, under Title II; was budg­
eted for the remainder of FY-80 (March 1 through September 30, 1980). We
were informed that we have to adjust our budget for the months of June through
May 1980. We borrowed funding to carry us through March 1, 1980 to July 1,
1980, total cost of $17,000.00. This is to be reimbursed from Title II monies.
Our Title II grant was approved for $60,000.00-$15,000.00 for each tribe par­
ticipating in our program. This leaves us a remainder of $40,000.00 to fund pro­
gram activities for eleven months. Funding is the number one barrier.

2. Population definition-We were advised by the Area Office to use Public Law
93-638 population definitions, which is using only those numbers within reservation
boundaries. Weare actully serving all Indian youth within the state. There needs
to be a clarification of population included in Public Law 95-608 funding.

3. There needs to be a network established to coordinate various federal agencies
so alternative funding can be identified-so total program activities are not
dependent upon Bureau of Indian Affairs funding.

4. Technical assistance in direct service activities is needed for implementation
of the Act (Public Law 95-608)-various programs are in waiting. (residential
treatment facility, group home for adoptive and foster children, family services
recreational activities, etc.). Funding needs to be appropriated to support tribes
in program development, technical assistance from federal agencies and or both.

5. The states need funding to develop legislation in support of implementing
the Act (Public Law 95-608). Federal dollars could support these activities or
federal pressure directing states to cooperate with the tribes.·

These are but a few of the concerns that we wanted to share. It is our position
that if Public Law 95-608 is indeed going to succeed and serve the. tribes and
Indian communities, strengthen the Indian families and especially our Indian
youth, then some legislative action is necessary.

Thank you.
Sincerely,

Forget such an effort and appeal to Congressman Yeates
and our Federal legislators. The latter is done,we
shall accomplish the former immediately.

Second: we must show that we have exhausted all other remedies.

We have made an appeal and been turned down. That has happened.

we must allege mismanagement of the allocation of accounts.

With that we may have a problem because they will show that the
management was left to the discretion of the agency.

We would have a problem showing that the agency acted with
complete disregard for reasonable considerations.

Per instructions from Donna I followed up on a contact she had discovered
regarding a Federal Injunction effort.

"-
The Contact was Allen Parker at the Indian Lawyers Training Program

Washington, D.C.
202 466 4085

First:. we must decide under what authority - reasons - ~n-injunctinn~was to
be made.

It would be an Administrative Law Suit.
It would not be because of civil rights violations.
It would be lodged against the Secretary of the Interior.

Allen was not encouraging and even suggested that a greater.potential for
action lies in the political process; for instance, and appeal to Congressman
Yeates, Chairman of the House Appropriation Committee.

We would have to contact a local lawyer to handle; costs were asked, but no
response was given.

RECOMMENDATION:

DLR

JAN CHARLES GOSLIN, L.M.S.W.,
Director, Inter-Tribal Children's Program.
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SISSETON-WAHPETON-SroUX TRIBE OF THE
LAKE TRAVERSE RESERVATION,

SISSETON, S. DAK., August 8, 1980.

J

~

Senator MELCHER,
Select Committee on Indian Affairs,
U.S. Senate,
Washington, D.C.

DEARSENATOR MELCHER: This letter is a follow up to the recent hearing held
by the Select Committee on Indian Affairs. We wish to present the following issues
for the Committee's consideration:

1. The impact of the Indian Child Welfare Act.
2. The roleof the Bureau of Indian Affairs in funding and providing technical

assistance under the Act.
3. The appropriation of funds under Title II of the Act.
4. The allocation process for funding under the Act.
The Indian Child Welfare Act is the single most important piece of federal

legislation affecting Indian families and children. For the first time the federal
government has taken a positive view of the rights and the responsibilities of
Indian people over Indian children.

The impact of the law on the Sisseton-Wahpeton Sioux Tribe has been positive.
The Tribe has developed an excellent working relationship with the state court on
child custody matters (this has been in spite of conflicts on other matters). This
cooperation has existed at both the local and statelevels.

This law has provided the Tribe with the responsibility for the destiny of all
Tribal members. This responsibility (on inherent right) is taken very seriously. In
every case involving the possible transfer ofa child back to the Tribe every effort
is made to determine what action will be in the best interest of the child. '

The biggest problem faced by the Tribe in implementing the law has been the
lack of funds for program development. The lack of funds has hindered the. de­
velopment of programs at Sisseton. On other reservations where some .type of
Tribal social service system hasn't existed; it has been a .much greater, detri-
ment to full implementation of the law. .. . .'

The working relationship between the Tribal social services staff and Bureau
social services staff at the Agency, area and central office levels has been very
'positive. The Bureau social services employees have usually been cooperative and
helpful. A problem always associated in working with the Bureau is that of fund-
ing. Nobody ever seems to know what the money situation is. c

The problems we've encountered with the Bureau relate primarily to problems
of funding. One of the most significant moves by Congress in relation to this law
would be the funding of Title II of the Act. Without a commitment to funding,
Congress is setting Indian people up for a repeated cycle of unmet expectations
and broken promises. The changes which the law calls for requires a commitment
of funds and time. The development and and full implementation of these pro­
grams requires a minimum of ten years. As yet Congress has neve:r;appropriated
any funds to carry out thelaw."' .. ,

The allocation process for funding under the law was very confusing. The con­
fusion on this matter stemmed from not knowing how much money would be
available or how many applications would be made for the difficult funds. If
Congress would appropriate a definite figure it would make it much easier for the
Bureau of Indian Affairs to establish its allocation guidelines. Writing proposals
under this program was very difficult because there was no way that the Bureau
could indicate exactly how much money would be available.

It seems that funds should be somewhat competitive, but given the nature of this
Act; all Tribes wishing to submit an application should be funded .unless the
proposalis so incomplete that it makes absolutely no sense. Although we have been
very satisfied with the cooperation we have received from the Bureau; the Bureau
should consider more aggressive offerings of technical assistance to those Tribes
who have not: yet had the opportunity to develop programs.

I thank you, Senator and hope that some positive value comes of the hearings.
Sincerely, '

DOROTHY GILL,
Director, Human Seroices Department.

AfIJH H,":'
I~\

~ .. -,.,<'


